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INDEP<DENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes to financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as the " Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid finar.cial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) in the manner 52 required and give a true and fair view in cunformity with the Indian
Accounting Stz:dards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“"Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
wecticn 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results section
of our report. We are indenendent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules thereunier, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
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ig sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our opinion is not modified in

respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Results

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial results that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.
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igasufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

W
g‘lgnagement's Responsibility for the Financial Results

a.
The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in
erquity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
nreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
uesign, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial results that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

Drocess.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial results, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial results, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
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(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
pariod and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when in extremely rare
circumstances we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

‘nterest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a) During the year, a contingent liability of Rs.30.5 Lakhs, disclosed in audited financials for
FY 2022-23 of the company has been paid in full by the said subsidiary upon receipt of
final penal order of the RBI under Para 9.1(ii)(d) of the Master Directions on PPIs dated
Aug 27,2021. The same is disclosed as an extraordinary item in the consolidated financial
results of the company. Our conclusion on the financial results is not modified in respect

of the above matter.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

4

Ao

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended,

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,

we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.
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. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns
adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by

us.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“"Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ report in accordance with
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its directors

sl



h.

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vii. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) above contain any material
mis-statement.

viii. Based on the representations received by us and audit procedures conducted by us,
the company has paid dividend during the year and the same is in compliance of
Section 123 of Companies Act, 2013.

For RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. - 011106N

Qi

(ROHIT GOEL)

PARTNER

M. No. 091756

UDIN: 24091756BKHIWS6919

Date: 14.05.2024
Place: Chandigarh



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’
of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2024:

i. (a) (A) According to the explanations and representations made to us by the
management, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipments.

(B) According to the explanations and representations made to us by the
management, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

Intangible Assets

(b) The Property Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the
management in a phased manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three
years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Property Plant
and Equipments and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed
asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed

by the management, as represented to us.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us, the company does not own any
immovable properties as such reporting with regards to conveyance deeds is not applicable

in its case.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not revalued
its Property Plant and Equipments or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been

initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
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(a) In respect of its inventories, since the company is a Non-Banking Financial Company,
it does not carry any types of inventory. Hence, this clause is not applicable. Securities in
the shape of gold ornaments are held by the company however the same do not form part
of inventories. As per the management, the same have been physically verified on quarterly

basis.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees during the year from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. Basis the information and explanation provided to us and basis our audit
procedures including test check procedures, we have not come across any material
difference between the information submitted in the quarterly returns / statements filed
by the company with such banks and financial institutions when compared with the books

of accounts and other relevant information provided by the Company.

(a) As the company is in principal business of extending loans, clause 3(iii) (a) of the order

is not applicable to the company hence not commented upon.

(b) Considering that the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, the investments
made, guarantees given and security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of

loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company'’s interest.

(c) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under
provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder and is
regulated by various regulations, circulars and norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
In respect of loans granted by the Company, we report that the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of
principal and interest are regular except relating to Stage-3 or Credit impaired Loan assets
(or Non Performing Assets as per applicable RBI Norms) as disclosed in the financial
statements and reproduced below in sub para (d).
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vi.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company by the Company, there is no overdue

amount for more than ninety days as at the Balance Sheet date except for the following

cases as on March 31, 2024:

Gold Loan and Other others
No. of Loan | Principal Amount | Interest Amount | Total amount
accounts overdue Overdue* overdue
1082 7,18,92,500 1,54,73,637 8,73,66,137

*The abovementioned interest overdue has been derecognized as income as well as not
included in carrying value of loan assets as per applicable RBI norms and accounting

policies of the company.

(e) The Company is primarily engaged in the lending business and accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) Basis the information and explanations provided to us by the management, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment and accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and securities as applicable.

Based on audit procedures performed by us and explanations received by us, company has
issued Non Convertible debentures to deposit holders as per applicable guidelines of the
Reserve Bank of India. The provisions of section 73 to 76 of Companies Act 2013 however
do not apply to the company as it is a Non Banking Finance Company. However, as
represented to us by the management, it has complied with applicable guidelines of the
RBI while issuing the NCDs. Further, the company has explained that no order involving it
has been passed by the NCLT, CLB or RBI or any other court or any other tribunal.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.
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vii.

viii.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of accounts, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months

from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and
those charged with governance, there are no statutory dues which have not been paid on
account of a dispute except for demand of Rs 97090/~ raised vide order u/s 143(3) of the
Income Tax Act 1961 for Financial Year 2021-22. As per the documents examined by us
and explanation of the management, the said demand has arisen due to an error apparent
from record and a rectification application in this regard has been preferred with the

concerned officer and company is sanguine of resolution at the earliest.

According to information and explanations provided to us, there is no transaction that is
not recorded in the books of account which has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or any lender.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the term loans of the company have been applied for the purpose it was taken for.

d) In our opinion, funds raised for short term purposes are not being utilized for long
term purposes.

e) According to information provided to us, the company does not has not have any

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and as such reporting required as per the order
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

regarding receipt from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of

its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures is not applicable in the present case.

f) According to information shared and explanations given to us, the company does not
has not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and as such reporting required
as per the order regarding raising of loans during the year on the pledge of securities held

in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company not raised money by way of initial public offer or

further public offer,

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has raised money by private placement of Non-
convertible debentures during the year and the relevant requirements of Companies Act
2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes as
specified in the offer letters issued to the debenture holders.

(a) Based on audit procedures performed and information and explanations &
representations given to us by management, no fraud by the company or on the company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no report u/s 143(12) of Companies Act 2013
has been filed by the auditors.

(c) As per explanations provided to us by the company, no whistle blower complaints
have been received by the company during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore provisions of Para 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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Xiv.

XV.

xVvi.

xVii.

xviii.

XiX.

xXX.

(a) In our opinion and according to explanations and information received by us, the
company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the financial year were obtained by us from the
management and verified on test check and sample basis as part of our audit procedures.

The findings as per such reports were considered by us as part of our audit.

In our Opinion and according to information and explanations provided to us, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions as specified in section 192 of the
Companies Act 2013 with directors or persons connected with them during the year. Hence
reporting requirement under Clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The company is carrying on the business of lending against gold ornaments as well as
other loans and for the said purpose company has obtained Certificate of Registration
(COR) from RBI and is registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India.

Upon examination of the cash flow statement of the company, we have concluded that the
company had not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial year.

There has not been any resignation by statutory auditor during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements as well as our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is incapable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance or guarantee as to the future viability of the Company and further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report as disclosed to us by

the management and not thereafter.

As per information shared with us by the management as well as per our audit procedures,
the company has duly complied with CSR obligations and there is no unspent CSR amount
at the end of the year.

AL



xxi. The company does not have any subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates and as such
reporting as per the order regarding report of auditors of companies included in

consolidated financial statements is not applicable in this case.

For RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. - 011106N

————

(ROHIT GOEL)

PARTNER

M. No. 091756

UDIN: 24091756BKHIWS6919

Date: 14.05.2024
Place: Chandigarh



“Annexure B"” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial
Statements of Paul Merchants Finance Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Paul Merchants Finance
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
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both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
nrinciples. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
cf financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For RAJIV GOEL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. - 011106N

o

(ROHIT GOEL)

PARTNER

M. No. 091756

UDIN: 24091756BKHIWS6919
Date: 14.05.2024
Place: Chandigarh



PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2024
CIN-UB5921CH2010PTCO32462

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars Note Current Year as at 31st Mar 24 Previous Year as at 31st Mar 23
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 1,533.10 806 45
Bank Balance Other than [a] above 1 38250 28562
Receivables
(I} Trade Receivables 2 4182 518
{Il) Other Receivables .
Loans 3 95,601.31 70,740 03
Investments
Other Financial assets (to be specified) 4 13.04 13.04
Non - Financial Assets
Inventories
Current Tax Assets 5 149.66 375.50
Deffered Tax Asset| Net) B #8253 25.15
Investment Fraperty
iological Assets Other than bearer plants -
Property, Plant and Equipment 7 983.93 859.76
Other intangibie Assets 7 10981 83133
Intangible Assets Under Development TA 69.70
Capital Work in Progress 7A 2525 1491
Other Nan Financial Assets ] 85249 70176
TOTAL ASSETS 99,7/5.44 73,981.03
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments
Payables
{1} Trade Payables
{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises A 44.08 36.10
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 8 70.92 37.10
(1) Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises -] 3,915.70 473.86
Debt Securities 10 709.00
Borrowing (other than Debt Securities) 11 66,836.70 53,141.1%
| Deposits
Subordinate Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilites
MNon Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net]
Provisions 12 453 34 35033
Deffared Tax Liabilities| Net)
Other Non Financial Liabilites {1o be specified) 13 618 430
EQuITy
a} Equity Share Capital 14 3.877.15 3,101.72
b) Other Equity 15 23,846.41 16,836 46
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 99,775.44 73.981.03

Accounting Policies and Notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financii

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

SATPANL SHAIBU GHEVARG!
[Chatrm, (Whole Ty
DN - DIN 07319125
#74g, se Puthenparambil, Karipuram,
are Mukkoodu P.O. Kerala
W
RATI MARKAN SHIVANI SHARMA
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
termbership no 02300 Membership no ACS A4GSE]
¥ 350,5ec 38A, Chandigarh #31/67/08, Varun Path, Mansarovar
faipur 302020

Place Chandigarh

Date \‘-105 20']_,'1

Auditor’'s Report
As per our separate reports of even
date attached

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN = 011106N

Herilt

CA. Rohit Goel

Partner

Membership No 091756
SCO 823-B24, SECTOR <224,
Chandigarh

N gM6 413SE RK HITV“‘*H




PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Audited Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31st Mar 2024

CIN-UB5921CH2010PTC032462

{Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Current Year for the year ended Previous Year for the year ended
31st Mar 24 31st Mar 23
Revenue from Operations
{i} Interest income 16 16,042 45 10,588 48
(i1} Gain en assignment of financial asset 16 Ba.10
(i) Rental Income
(iv) Fees and commission Income 7 356.50 457 20
Total Revenue from operations 16,483.05 11,045.68
Other income 18 | 24592 5194
Total Income (1+)1) 16,728.97 11.097.62
Expenses:
(I} Finance Costs 19 5,333.16 3,843 35
{11) Employees Benafits Expenses 20 3,38202 237380
(iil) Depreciation, amortization and impairmant 7 332 41 221.36
(v} Others expenses 21 2,622.9% 2,058551
(v} CSR Expense 22 68.87 51.62
Tatal Expenses (IV) 12,739.46 8,545 43
Profit before exceptional & extraordinary items & tax (IV-V) 3,989.51 2,552.19
Exceptional Items 23 30.50 B54
Profit before tax (V-Vi] 3,959.01 2,543.65
Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax 98667 635 49
{2) Prior period taxes 23.06 132
(3) Deferrad tax 58.00 1103
Profit/{Loss] for the period from continuing operations (VII-Vill) 3,053.40 1,894.45
Profit/{Loss) for the period from discontinued operations
Tax Expense of Discontinuing operations -
Prafit/{Loss) for the period from discontinued operations after tax (X-
x1)
Profit (Loss) for the year (IX + xi) 3,053.40 1,894.45
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Afi) items that will not be reclassified to profit or  loss-
Remeasurement Gain|Loss) on defined employee benefit plans 249 5.39
(#l) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 40.63 -1.36
Bii) Items that will be reclassitied to profit or loss
il} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (Xin+Riv) 3,055.26 1,898.48
Earnings per equity share (for contiving operations):
(1) Basie(Rs ) 7 B8 611
(2) Diluted( Rs.) 788 611
Farnings per equity share (for discontinued operations)
(1) Basic( Rs.) .
(2) Diluted( Rs.)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing and discontinued
operations)
(1) Basic| Rs.) 788 611
(2) Diluted{ Rs. 7.88 6.11
dal financial st t

Accounting Policies and Notes referred to above form an integral part of the

For and on behilf of the Board of Directors

Chief Finangial Officer
Membership no 502300
# 350,5ec 38A, Chandigarh

Place: Chandigarh

pae- |4-04- 202 Y

SHAIBU GEEVARGHESE CHERIAN
{Whale Tife Directar|

DIN 07319125

Puthenparambil, Karipuram,

Mukkoodu P.O Kerala
ﬁ L
SHITANI SHARMA /

Lompany Secretary

Membership no ACS A46981

¥ 31/67/08, Varun Path, Mansarovar
Jawpur 302020

Auditor's Report
As per pur separate reports of even
date attached

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartersd Accountants
FRN — D11106N

Fialle

CA Raohit Goel

Pariner

M. No. 391756

SCO 823-824, SECTOR - 22A,
Chandigarh
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PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT 31st March 2024
[Rs. in lakhs)
PARTICULARS Current Year as at 31st Mar 24 Previous Year as at 31st Mar 23
H FLOW FR ERATIN: TIVITIE
Profit before Tax and Extraardinary items 3,961 50 254904
Adjustment for;
Deprecation 332 41 221 36
Profitfioss un Sale of Faed Assets/Invesiments
Finance Cost
Interest income
Dividend Recelved - - —
Profit before warking Capital Changes 4,293.91 2,770.40
Adjustment for |
Net changes in operating Assets & Liabilities
Other Non Current Assets
Shart Term Loans & Advances -24,861 28 -22,987.19
Other Current Assets 38.46 59.69
Trade Payables 41.79 189.15
Other Current Liabilities 3,443.69 56.96
Shart Term Provisions _1sm = 75.66
Cash generated from operations -21,218.33 -22,719.65
Income Taxes Paid <953 61 -638.16
Cash generated from operation before extraordinary items -17,888.03 20,587 42
Dividend Received
Net Cash flow from operating activities -17,888.03 -20,587.42
CASH FLOW FROM LENDING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed Depogited with Banks
Interest Receved on Fixen Depouts
Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Fixed Assets -423.10 697 a1
increase/Decrease in Current Investments
Increase/Decrease in Non Current Investments R o >
MNet cash used in lending and investing activities -423.10 -697.41
FLOW FRi FINANCI ACTIVITIE
issue of Share Capital 77543
Increase in Share premium 4,187.32
Dividend Paid -232.63 133.58
Borrowings (Net of Repayments) 14,404 54 21,510.12
) 19,134.66 21,370.54
Net cash flow after financing activities 82353 8572
Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 1,092.07 1,006.35
o S
Cash and Cogh equivalents ot the end of the year ] /Y ] 191560 1,092.07

SATPAUL
|Chairman
DIN - 00077
R749, Sector 8§,
Chandigar

AARTI MARKAN

Chief Financial Officer
Membership no 502300

# 350,5ec 38A, Chandigarh

AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE

{Whale Time DI

DINQ7319125

Puthenpatambil, Karipuram

Mukkoodu P O Kerala o
W

SHIVANI SHARMA

Company Secretary

Membership no ACS A45981

# 31/87/08, Varun Path, Mansarovar,

Jaipur 302020

We have examined the Cash flow Statement of Paul Mearchants Finance Private Limited for the year ended 31st March 2024
The Statement is in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss account and Balance Sheet of the Company
covered by our repurt of even date lothe members of the Company

Place: Chandigarh

Date ‘\1 'b‘s‘-hl‘j

For Rajiv Goel & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 011106N

A
CA. Rohit Goel
Partner
M. No. 091756
SCO823-B24, SECTOR -22A,
Chandigarh
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PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CIN-U65921CH2010PTC032462

A Equity Share Capltal

Changes in equity share capital for the year ended 31 Mar 2024

Particulars o Amount (Re.in lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting penod 3,101.72
Changes in equity share capital due 10 prior period errors =
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period A
Changes in equily share capital dunngtheyear =~ o 775.43
Balance at the end of the reporting penod 3,877.15

Changes in equity share capital for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Particulars _ Amount (Rs.in lakhs) =0
Balance at the beginming of the reporting penod 1 o 3,101.72 |
Changes in eguity share capital due lo pnor penod enrors . ] -
Bcs:a[nu_balgn_:e at IP!E baginning (:I tn!_l \‘:urfe_r‘l_t reporting pencd
Cnanges in equity share cagtal dunng the year

Balance at 1he end of Ine reporting penod_ 3.101.72
B Other Equity
Changes in other equity for the year ended 31 Mar 2024
(Rs. In lakhs]
Reserves and Surplus Total
Remeasurement
Particulars Security Hnevil of Net defined
premium . Statutory reserve benefit Impairment Reserve
Account Asset/Liability
(net of tax)
Halance at the beginming of the current reporting penod 9,135.11 598573 185141 * 84 21 16,836.46 |
| Changes in accounting policy or pnor perod errces =
Restated balance al the beginning of current reporting s
penad
Dividends -232.63 -232.63
Total comprehensive income for the current year _ 238545 610.68 57.28 3,053.40
| Security premium during the year 4,187.32 PR (. | 1 438732
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 145 037 186
Balance as on 31-03-2024 13322 43 B,140.04 226246 - 121 48 23 B4E 41
Changes in other equity for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(Rs. In lakhs
Reserves and Surplus Total
Remeasurement
Particulars Security tanarai of Net defined
premium Ressive Statutory reserve benefit Impairment Reserve
Account Asset/Liabllity
(net of tax)
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting pericd 9,135.11 461582 127171 ] L _ s4B0] 2 1807758
Changes in accounting pelicy or prior penod erroes R ) :
Restaled baiance al the beginning of current reparting ] i ) N )
period N ety -
Dwidends o B -138.58 - -135.58 |
Total comprehensive income for the current year 1,606.25 378.89 9.3 1.894.45
Security premium during the year - .
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 3.23 0.81 - - 404
Balance as on 31-03-2023 8,135.11 598573 1.651.41 - 64,21 16,835 46

Auditor's Report
As per our separate reports of even
date attached

SATPAUL SE CHERIAN
(c nauman‘an. nig:r:g Directar) {Whole §me Director) For Rajiv Goel & Associates
TN - DDO7Y DIN 07319125 Chartered Accountants
#7749 Sectar 8, Puthenparambil, Kariguram, FRN - D111068
_ghandigarh Mukkaodu PO, Kerala
Lu"‘k s W“/‘C"O// AR

RTI MARKAN SHIVANI SHARMA, CA. Rohit Goel
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Partner
Membership no 502300 Memberthip no ACS A46381 M. Ho. 091756
# 350.Sec 38A, Chandigarh # 31/67/08. Varun Path, Mansaraovar, SECTOR -224,

laipur 302020 Chandigarh

YO 240 NASE BK NI WS E)q

Place: Chandigarh

Date N' GS 20 -L\



Note 1: CASH & BANK BALANCE

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023
Particulars
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
A. Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks in Current Accounts 1,425.17 43491
Cash in Hand 107.93 371.54
Total (1) 1,533.10 806.45
B. Other Balances with Banks
i) In Term Deposit Accgunts with > 3 month 382.50 285.62
and <12 months maturity
Total (2) 382.50 285.62
Total (142) 1,915.60 1,092.07




Note 2: Trade Receivable

pardeulaie As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. In lakhs) | Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Sundry Debtors 41.82 5.18
Total 41.82 5.18

Note 2 : Trade Receivable Aging
particulars As at 31st Mar 2024
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
More than 3
Less than 6 Months 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years o::ar:n Total
a) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered
gooc 41.37 0.80 22.17
b) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered
doubtful .
¢) Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered
good -
d) Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered
doubtful R
Total 41.37 0.80 - - 42.17
particul As at 31st Mar 2023
Y- Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
More than 3
Less than 6 Months 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total
a) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered
pood 5.18 5.18
b) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Considered
doubtful
¢) Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered
good
d) Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered
doubtful .
Total 5.18 - - - - 5.18




(Rs. In lakhs)

Note 3 : LOANS - e T e 2 5
o . Asar3istMar2024 -
Particulars B AtFarValye
Through Other  Through Designated at fair
Amortised Cost Comprehensive  Profit or value through  Subtot Total

Income Loss profit or loss al
Maximum Balance during the year
i) Gold Loan (includes 10% MRR
under Direct Assignment) 95,338.69 - - - 95,338.69
u) Other Loan 262.62 — 262 62
Total (A) - Gross 95,601.31 - ] 95,601.31
Less: Impairment loss alk e * = = s
Total (A) - Net 95,601.31 . - - - 95,601.31
(8)
1) Secured by tangible
assets/Guarantee
i) Gold Loan (includes 10% MRR
under Direct Assignment) 95,338.69 . - 95,338.69
i) Other Loan 20008 - . - 200 09
Total (1) - Gross 95,538.78 - 95,538.78
Less Imparment loss allowance & = = —
Total {I) - Net - ~ 95,538.78 = 95,538.78
II) Covered by Bank / Government
Guarantees - -
) Unsecured
i) Other Loan 62.53 - - - - 62.53
Total (Ill} - Gross 6253 - - - 62.53
Less: Impairment luss allowance = = & = - -
Total (1) - Net 6253 E . - 62.53
Total (B) (1+1i+1ll} - Net 95,601.31 . - = ) - - 95,601.31 |
(C) (1) Loans in India
i} Public Sector
n) Others 95,601.31 - - - - 95,601.31
(C) (1) Loans outside India - - =
Total (C) - Gross 95,601.31 - = - - 95,601.31
Less: Impairment loss allowance 2 = £ - N - =
Total [C)- Net 95,601.31 - - - 95,601.31

(Rs. In lakhs)
Asat31March2023 N R—
Particulars _ At Fair Value S
Through Other  Through Designated at fair
Amortised Cost Comprehensive Profit or value through  Subtot Total

Income Loss profit or loss al
(A)
i] Gold Loan 69,799.58 63,793.58
ii) Other Loan 34045 - 940.45
Total (A} - Gross 70,740.03 - - - - 70,740.03
Less: Impairment |oss all (J 4 . . - . -
Total (A) - Net 70,740.03 - - . = 70,740.03
(8)
1) Secured by tangible assets
I) Gold Loan 69,795.58 - - - 68,799.58
it} Other Loan 307 63 907,63
Total (1) - Gross 70,707.21 - - - - 70,707.21
Less: Impairment loss allowance B - - = . . - =
Total (1) - Net 70,/01.21 - . . 70,707.21
Il} Covered by Bank / Government
Guarantees = = - =
i} Unsecured
1} Other Loan 32182 - - - 3282
Total (1] - Gross 32.82 - - - - 32.82
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - g
Total {Il) - Net 32.82 32.82
Total (8) {1+11+111) - Net 74003 === = T 707100
(C} (1) Loans in India
i) Public Sector
it} Others 70,740.03 - < - 70,740.03
(C) (1) Loans outside India = E
Total (C) - Gross 10,740.03 - - 70,740.03
less: Impairment loss allowance e ———. e z -
Total (C)- Net 70,740.03 & . O\ 70,740.03

S 0T [
SENICR 224 |~
=~ A—




Naote 4: Other Financial assets

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Paticulars Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount Recoverable 13.04 13.04

Other Recoverable =

Advance from Customers/ Renewal Pending - -
Total 13.04 13.04

Note 5 : CURRENT TAX ASSETS

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Particulars
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amoaunt (Rs. In lakhs)
Advance Tax & TDS (Net of Provision for Tax)* 36.78 272.90
Tax refundable - 0.20
Input Credit 112.88 102.40
Total 149.66 375.50

* In Earlier periods, advance tax Paid and TDS deducted was shown separatly while Provision for tax was
disclosed separately under current tax liabilities. However , from Financial year 2023-24 onwards both
these figures are being netted from each other for better presentation. Previous Figures have also been

reclassified.




Note 6 Deferred Tax Liabilities /Assets

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st Mar 2023

Current Year

Accounting TaxBass | PYA/IDTL) | Actourting TaxBase | DTA/(DTL) Bal.| DTA/(DTL) Prov.
Base Bal. Base

Fixed Assets 1,093.74 1,307.70 53.85 1,013.39 1,096.74 20.98 32.87
Payable related to direct Assignment 66.13 16.64 - - 16.64
Bank Borrowings (Term Loans) 25,118.25 25,260.34 -35.76 511.97 619.73 -27.12 -8.64
Provision for Gratuity 102.77 - 25.87 67.71 17.04 8.82
Provision for Bonus 87.12 21.93 56.63 14.25 1.67
82.53 25.15 57.37




M/S PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

PARTI ¥ DEPRECIATION ALLOWABLE AS PER PANIES ACT, 2013
Note 7: Property, Plant and Equipment
T
i Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
| (Amount Rs. In lakhs) (Amaunt Rs. In lakhs) (Amount Rs. In lakhs)
PARTICULARS Rate
Balance as at Balance as at 1 April | Depreciation charge Balance as at 31st Mar | Balance asat 1 April Balance as at 315t Mar
1 April 2023 Additions Dispasals Balance as at 31st Mar 2024 2023 Yor the yeai On disposals 2024 2013 2024
Motor Car } 31.23% 173,37 0.00 000 17337 101.14 22.62 0.00 123.76 72.23 43 61
|
|
|sates | 1mio% 470,95 133.24 0.00 504.15 122.83 72.30 0.00 19513 348.12 409,05
Security Devices 18.10% 102 08 59.06 0.00 161 14 21.24 18.20 0.00 3944 B0 B4 12170
|Computer & Accessories | 53 16% 136.35 53.16 000 184 51 79.74 52.51 0.00 132.35 56.61 57.36
|Weighing Scale ] 18.10% 19,51 246 0.0e 2197 686 2.51 0.00 9.37 12.65 1258
|Furniture & Fixture 25 B9% 255.60 98.80 000 354 40 75.63 58.68 0.0o 13431 179.97 220.09
| Invertor 25 89% 46.13 16.65 128 61.50 15.20 9.51 0.29 1447 3094 37.08
Alr Conditioner = 25 89% 63.51 13.89 o.00 77.41 18.72 12.85 0.00 31.57 44,80 4584
Currency Counting
Machine(incliding Office 25 B9% 4552 6,52 000 52.04 1191 9.43 0.00 21.34 3361 30.70
equipments)
Tatal 1,313.02 383.77 128 1,69551 453.25 258,61 0.29 711.58 859.76 983.93
|Intangible Assets
Software 63.16% 18546 99.68 0.00 285 14 101.54 73.80 0.00 175.34 83.93 109 81
Total Intangible Assets 185.46 99.68 0.00 285.14 101.54 73.80 0.00 175.34 83.93 109.81
Intangible Assets Under |
Development 830 0.00 6370 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 oo 69.70 a0
Total Current Year | 1,568.18 483.45 70.98 1,980 .65 554.79 iza1 0.29 886.92 1,013.39 1,093.74
!
Total Last Year | B70.78 708.96 11.56 1,568.18 333.44 22136 0.00 554.79 537.34 1,013.39

** No revaluation of any class of asset is carried out during the year




Note 7A - Capital Work in Progress - Ageing

(Rs. In lakhs)

As on 31-Mar-2024

Assets Under Development

Less than 1 year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

Total

gible Assets

Projects in progress

Projects Temporarily suspended

Overdue Projects

Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total

wip

Projects in progress

4525

1535

Projects Temporarlly suspended

Overdue Projects

Projects Exceeded Budgstary Cost

Total

25.25

15.25

Gross Total

2525

25.25

{Rs. In lakhs)

As on 31-Mar-2023

Assets Under Development

Less than 1 year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

[more than 3 vears

Total

Intangible Assets

5.90

69.70

Projects in progress
Projects Temporarily suspended

63 80

Overdus Projects

Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total

cwip

Projects in pr Dgress

Projects Tempararily suspended

Projects Exceeded Budgetary Cost

Total

Gross Total

5.90




MNote 8 : OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Prepaid Expenses 323.04 227.34
Security and Amount Refundable 376.63 226.14
Advance to Vendor 151.93 248.29
Total 852.49 701.76
Note 9 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHER PAYABLES
As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Particulars

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Expenses and other Payable 3,602.33 270.2427525%
Interest payable on NCD 13.41
Auction Refundable 17.55 561
Irade Payable 114 99 73.20
Salary Payable 282.40 198.00

Total 4,030.70 547.06
Note 9 : TRADE PAYABLE AGEING

As at 31st Mar 2024

Particulars

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years| Moaore than 3 years Total
(i) MSME (Undisputed) 44.08 - - - 44.08
(ii) Others (Undisputed) 52.78 17.46 0.68 70.92
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others -
Total 96.85 17.46 = 0.68 114.99
Baricatin As at 31st Mar 2023
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME (Undisputed) 36.10 - - 36.10
() Others (Undisputed) 35.20 1.90 37.10
(ii) Disputed Dues - MSME -
(v} Disputed Dues - Others
Total 1.90 - 73.20




Note 10 : Debt Securities

M/S PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

{Rs. In lakhs)

Debentures

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st Mar 2023

Terms of Redemption/Repayment

Security

11500 unlisted, redeemable , secured, non-
convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

115.00

Coupon Rate -9 75 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Freg ¥ - Manthly
Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenor - 60 Maonths

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditors  on entire
book debt /recevables { both present and
future of the company

2900 unlisted, redeemable | secured, Srcitizen,
non-convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

5.00

Coupon Rate - 10.25 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Frequency - Manthly
Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenor:- 60 Months

Secured by way of Faripassu charge with
existing secured Creditors , on entire
book debt frecevables | both present and
future of the company

12400 unlisted, redeemable | secured, non-

124.00

Coupon Rate - 10.25 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Frequency .- Annual
Principal Payment Frequency °-

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenor:- 60 Months

|Secured by way of Panpassu charge with
existing secured Creditors, on entire
book debt /receivables | both present and
future of the company

convertible deb of Rs 1000 each

31000 unlisted, redeemable , secured, Srcitizen,
nan-convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

310 00

Coupon Rate - 10 75 % Per Annum
Coupan Payment Frequency - Annual
Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenaor:- 60 Manths

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditors , on entire
book debt /recesvables | bath present and
future of the company

1000 unlisted, redeemabie , secured. non-
eatvertible. Jebanturas ofiRs 1000 sach

3000

Coupon Rate - 9.25 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Frequency - Annual
Principal Payment Frequency -
Bullet Fayment at the end of tenor
Tenor - 36 Months

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditars . on entire
bock debt /recelvabies | both present and
future of the company

500 unlisted, redesmable | secured, Srtitizen
non-convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

5.00

Coupon Rate - 9 75 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Frequency - Annual
Principal Payment Frequency

Bullet Payment 3t the end of tenar
Tenor:- 36 Manths

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
enisting secured Creditors . on entire
book debt frecesables | both present and
future of the company

1500 unlisted, redesmable | secured, non-
convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

15.00

Coupon Rate - 5 50 % Per Annum

5 d by way of Paripassu charge with

Coupon Pay a ¥ - Y
Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenor:- 24 Months

existing secured Creditors _ on snlire
book debt /receivabies [ both present and
future of the company

4000 ynlisted, redeemable , secured, Sroitizen,
non-convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

Coupon Rate - 5,00 % Per Annum
Coupan Payment Frequency .- Menthly
Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenar
Tenaor:- 24 Months

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditors , on entire
book debt /receivables | both present and
future of the company

4800 unlisted, receamable , secured, non-
canvertible debentures of As 1000 each

48.00

Coupon Rate :- 3.00 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Frequency - Annual

|Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenor:- 24 Months

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditors . on entire
book debt /receivables { both present and
future of the company

1000 uniisted, redeemable ; secured, Srcitizen,
non-convertibie debentures of R 1000 each

1000

Coupon Rate - 3.50 % Per Annum
Coupon Payment Frequency - Annual
Principal Payment Frequency -
Builet Payment at the end of tenor
Tenor - 74 Months

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditors | on entire
book debt /recevables | both present and
future of the company

300 unlisted, redeemalble | secured, Sroititen
non-convertible debentures of Rs 1000 each

Coupon Rate - B 75 % Per Anpum
Coupon Payment Frequency - Half Yearly
Principal Payment Frequency -

Bullet Payment at the end of tenor

Tenor:- 24 Months

Secured by way of Paripassu charge with
existing secured Creditars  on entire
book debt /recevables [ both present and
future of the company




Note 11 : BORROWINGS

(A3, In |akhs)

As at 315t Mar 2024

Particulars
Designated at
At fair Value Through fair value
At Amortised Cost Total
MarRses o Profit or Loss through profit or ot
" loss
(a) Term Loan
(i) from banks - 22,466.42 - 22,466.42
Current Liabilitites 9.383.64 - 9.383.64
Non-Current Liabilities 13,082.78 - 13,082.78
(ii) from other parties - 2,651.83 2,651.83
Current Libilitites 1,960.43 1,960.43
Non-Current Liabilities 691.39 691.39
{iii} Car Loan 3.50 - 3.50
Current Liabilitites 3.50 350
MNon-Current Liabilities -
(b) Loans repayable on demand
(i) from banks 21,999.13 - 21,999.13
{a} in Indian Rupees 12,299.13 12,299.13
(b] foreign currency exposure 9,700.00 - 9,700.00
(c) Loans from related party 19,715.82 - - 19,715.82
Loan from Directors and Relatives (Unsecured) 105.50 105.50
Loan from fellow subsidaries 619.70 618.70
Loan from Holding Company {Unsecured) 18,990.62 18,990.62
Total (A) 41,718.45 25,118.25 66,836.70
Borrowings in India 41,718.45 25,118.25 - 66,836.70
Borrowings outside India -
Total (B) 41,718.45 25,118.25 * 66,836.70
(s Ir1 lakhs|
o B As at 31 March 2023 ) ]
Particulars At Fair Value -
Designated at
h Profi fair val
Amortised Cost Tiroueh Frofiter ) value Total
Loss through profit or
. o loss . —
(a) Term Loan
(i) from banks . 12,556.51 - 12,556.51
Current Liabilitites 3,815.81 - 3.815.81
Non-Current Liabilities 8,740.70 - 8,740.70
(ii) from other parties 2,252.10 2,252.10
Current Liabilitites 1,121.53 1,121.53
Non-Current Liabilities 1,130.57 1,130.57
{iii} Car Loan 31.26 31.26
Current Liabilitites 26.61 - 26.61
Non-Current Liabilities 4.65 4.65
(b) Loans repayable on demand
{i) from banks 13,814.18 13,814.18
{a) in Indian Rupees 5814 18 5.814 18
|b) fareign currency exposure 8,000.00 8.000.00
{c) Loans from related party 24,487.12 24,487.12
Loan from Directors and Relatives (Unsecured) 114.80 114.80
Loan from fellow subsidaries 633.70 633.70
Loan from Holding Company (Unsecured) 23,738 62 23,738.62
Total (A) 38,332.55 53,141.16
Borrowings in India 38,33255 53,141.16
Barrawings cutside India
Total (B) 38,332.55 53,141.16




M/S PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Note 11A : BORROWINGS SECURITIES DETAILS (Rs. In lakhs)
— = e p— - e — |
If Term Loans Nature of Facility As at31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023 Terms of Aedempition/Repayment Security
- - ——

This loan 1% Secured by panipassy floating charge on
| current assets of the company and corporate
l;g!lﬁiyrbn Bank Limited WCOL 1.500.00 Repayatile on Demand Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd. (Parent Co |
[
| |Repayabie in 18 equal monthly This [oan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
inutaliments starting from 3ed Apeil, current assets of the company and corporate
(AU Small finance Bank Ltd Term loan 670 62 1,996 31 | 2023 Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd (Parent Co |
Repayable in 17 equal manthly This loan is Secured by panipassu fioating charge on
installments starting from Sth October, |current assets of the company and corporate
fajaj Finance Limited Term loan 500 81 2023 Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd {Parent Co )
Thes laan is Secured by panpassu Noating charge on
Bajaj Finance Limited WCDL 1,500 00 1,000 00 |Repayable on Demand current assets of the company,
Repayable in 36 equal manthly This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
Capital Small Finance Bank Instaliments starting from 15t October, |current assets of the company and corporate
'\lg. R Term loan 757 .40 1,271.79 |2073 Guarrantee given by Paul merchants L1d (Parent Co )
| This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
| Capital Small Finance Bank Repayable n 36 monthly installments  |current assets of the company and corporate
|btd. _ Termloan | 579600 starting from 1st June, 2023 Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd (Parent Co |
ThisToar is Secured by paripassy (loatng charge on
| Cholamandatam investment Rapayabile in 36 monthly imstaliments  (current aasets of the company and corparate
|and Finance Company Termiloan 49838 | 71621 |starting from 10th Febiuary, 3023 |Guarrantee given by Paul meichants (1d [Parent Co |
| Repayatile i 3E egual monthly
Diamilar Financial Services | s taliments starting {rom dth
IIllﬂi Private Lid. Car loan . e 14 35 |February, 2021 i Tius loan was secured by speotic charge on vehucies
Repayable in 36 equal manthly
Installments starting from Jth lune
HOFC Bank Ltd Car loan 150 16.86 (2021 This loan is secured by specific charge on vehicles
This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and corporate
Guarrantes given by Paul merchants Ltd, [Parent Co. |
Repayable in 24 equal manthly Also, there is @ requirement 1o mantain 10% Cash
installments starting from 1st August, |Margin in the Form of FOR to be kept under Bank's lien,
|HDFC Bank Ltd. Term loan 1,556 34 0231 which is 1o be provided by Faul Merchants Limited
This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
currem assets of the company and corporate
Guarrantes given by Raul merchants Ltd {Parent Co |
[ ble in 24 equal monthly Also, there s a requirement 1o maintain 10% Cash
istallments starting from 28th Maegin in the Form of FOR to be kept under Bank's lien,
|HOFC Bank Ltd. Term loan 373389 October, 2023 which is 10 be provided by Paul Mercnants Limited
This loan is Secured by panpassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and corparate
Guarrantes given by Paul merchants Ltd (Paremt Co |
Repayable in 24 equal monthly Alsg, there is 3 requitement to maintain 10% Cash
installments starting fram I8th Margin in the Form of FDR to be kept under Bank'y hen,
HDFC Bank Ltd. Term lgan 1,956 77 November, 2003 B which 13 1o be peovided by Paul Merchaniy Limited
|
| This Inar i Secured by paripassu floating charge on
current assets of the company, debt mutual funds /
corparate bonde and |mmaveable property owned by
Faul Merchants Ltd (Parent Co ) itis turther secured by
|1C1C] Bank Ltd. WL 1.858.00 1,750.00 |Repayable on Demand —— corporate Guarrantee given by Paul Merchants Ltd
Ths loan is Secured by parpassy tloating charge on
current assels of the company and Imimavesble property
owned by Paul Merchants Ltd {Parent Ca | 1t i hurther
|secured by conpor ate Guarrantes given by Paul
10IC1 Bank Ltd. an 13645 B 10132 |Repayable on Merchants Ltd
This loan is Secured by panipassu floating charge on
Repayable in 48 egual monthly current assets of the company and corporate
[instaliments starting from 15t March,  |Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd (Parent Co |
:n_:gsm Ltd. Term loan 628 46 94874 | 2002 There is a cash margin requirement of 5% a3 FO
This loan 15 Secured by panipassu floating charge on
| Repayable in 48 equal monthly current assets of the company and corporate
installments starting from 1st May, Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd, (Parent Co |
Ilunl Bank Ltd. Term lgan 1,152.44 023 There s a cash margin requirement of 5% as FO
This ioan it Secured by panpassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and corporate
Guartantee given by Paul merchants Lid. (Parent Ca |
DR Bank Lid [a]] 945 095 nﬂl_bleunoemad There is a cash margin requirement of 5% a FD
| Repayable in 60 equal manthly This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge an
| installments starting from J29th Aprd,  [current assets of the company and conporale
Indian Dwerseas Bank Litd Term loan 1,482 B2 l _Lsmaoefrrs - Guariantee givern by Paul merchants ttd [Parent (o) |
SCP820.83 A

SECTCR 22.4



Thas lown 15 Secured by panpassu floating charge on

| R hie in 6O hly i current assets of the company and corporate
;_Indhn Owerseas Bank Ltd. Term loan 1,979.94 - |starting from “‘ﬂz”- 2024 Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd. [Parent Co |

Thes loan & Secured by paripassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and corporate
Guarrantes given by Paul merchants Ltd [Parent Co )
Also, there is a Lien over Tas free Bonds belonging to
Katak Mahindra Bank Ltd. o 99130 550 04 [Repayable an Demand M/s Paul Merchants Lia

Thas loan is Secured by panpassu tloating charge on
cutrent assets of the company and corporate
Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd [Parent Co |
Also, there it a Lien aver Tas free Bonds belonging ta
Katak a Bank Ltd. weDL 159000 1.736 39 |Repayable on Demand M/s Paul Mer Lid

This loan is Secured by panipassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and corparate

'Ratnakar Bank Limited (RBL) WCDL 1,500.00 - |Repayable on Demand Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd [Parent Co |

| Thus loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and Immoveable property)|
This loan is repayable in 60 monthly owned by Paul Merchants Ltd (Parent Co.) It is further

il 25 per Schedule given d by ¢ Guarrantee given by Paul
State Bank of Indis Term loan 5,205.20 5,787.41 E-elour' Merchants Ltd. and Personal Guarantes of Directors
This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
| Thas loan includes the FCNB of Fs. 3000 |current assets of the company and Immoveable property|
Lakhs, and i3 repayable in 36 monthly  [owned by Paul Merchants Ltd (Parent Co.). it is further
instaliments as per Schedule given |secured by corporate Guarrantee given by Paul
State Bank of India Term loan 3,680 98 below** Merchants Ltd. and Personal Guarantee of Directors.
| This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and Immoveable property|
‘owned by Paul Merchants Ltd (Parent Co.) It is further
| secured by corporate Guarrantee given by Paul
State Bank of India 1) 404.38 647.40 |Repayable on Demand®** | Merchants Ltd and Personal Guarantee of Directors
Thas Ioan & Secured by paripassu floating charge on
| current assets of the company and Immoveable property
owned by Paul Merchants Ltd [Parent Co | Itis further
secured by corporate Guarrantee given by Paul
|State Bank of India FCNB. 6,700.00 B,000.00 |Repayableon Demand Merchants Ltd and Personal Guarantee of Directary,
Repayable in 30 equal monthly This loan is Secured by paripassy floating charge on
Tata Capital Financial | starting fram Sth current assets of the company and corporale
Services Lid. Term loan 736.61 1,535 89 ber, 2012 given by Paul Ltd. [Parent Co |
Repayabile in 30 equal manthly This loan is Secured by paripassy floating charge on
Tata Capital Financial installments starting from Sth current assets of the company and corporate
|Services Lid. Term loan 918 95 5 ber, 2023 | Guarr given by Paul merchants Ltd. (Parent Co )
| Repayable in 5 equal quarterly This loan is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
instaliments starting fram 12th May current assets of the company and corporate
\The Federal Bank Limited Term loan 1,987 00 - |04 Guarrantee given by Paul itd. [Parent Co.)
This ioan Is Secured by paripassu floating charge on
current assets of the company and corparate
Union Bank Of india [ 2,808,55 - |Repayable on Demand Guarrantee given by Paul Ltd (Parent Co )
Repayabie in 24 equal monthiy This loan was Secured by paripassy floating charge on
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank |installments starting from 1st current assets of the company and corporate
(Ld. Term loan = 582 26 |November, 2022 Guarrantee given by Paul merchants Ltd. [Parert Co |
| Total 47,120.88 28,654.04
[Period [Amount of Instaliment No. of Install Total Repayment
[tan, 2023 1o March, 2024 [Rs050Cr 15 [Re 750G
iN__wl_,igNln March, 2026 Rz 1.00Cr 24 |Fa 24000
| i, 2026 ta Maich, 2027 Rs 150 Cr 12 [Rs 1B.00Cr
il, #3027 1o Dec, 2027 Rs 117 Cr _ 8 Rs 10500
Total 60 Rs60.000
Period [ Amoumt of Instaliment No. of instaliments | Total Repayment
Nov, 2023 to Oct, 2024 Rs 0.75 Cr 12 [Rs9.00Cr
Nav, 2024 10 Oct, 2025 Rs 1.10 Cr 12 [R5 13.20Cr
Nov, 2025 to Aug, 2026 Rs 1.25 Cr 10 [ Rs 1250 Cr
Sept, 2026 to Oct, 2026 Rs 265 Ct 2| Rs530Cr
Total 36 Re40.00Cr
v
[Penod Amount of install No. of installments._| Tatal Repayment __|
Qet, 2023 to Mar, 2024 Re0S0Cr 6| Rs300Cr
Apr, 3024 to Mar, 2025 Hs 075 Cr 12 [Rs9.00Cr
Apr, 2025 to Mar, 2026 Rs 1250 12 [ Rs 1500 Cr
|Apt, 2026 to Mar, 2027 Ry 2910 12 [ #s 3482 C
Apt, 2027 1o Feb, 2028 Rs 292 Cr 11 [Rs 3212 Cr
March, 2028 Rz 296 Cr 1|Re2596Cr
Total 54 |Rs97.00 Cr




Note 12: PROVISIONS

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Provision for Taxes **

Provision on Advances 238.30 192.75
- Provision on standard assets (Stage 1 & 2) 147.83 139.30
- Provision on NPA (Stage 3) 90.47 53.45
Provision for Gratuity 102.77 67.71
Provision For Leave Encashment *** 41.15 33.23
Provision For Bonus *** 87.12 56.63

Total 469.34 350.33

** |n Earlier periods, advance tax Paid and TDS deducted was shown separatly while Provision for tax
was disclosed separately under current tax liabilities. However , from Financial year 2023-24 onwards
both these figures are being netted from each other for better presentation. Previous Figures have

also been reclassified.

*** In Earlier periods, Provision for leave encashment and Bonus was merged under Expenses Payable
and was not shown separately. However , from Financial year 2023-24 onwards both these figures are
being shown seperately for better presentation. Previous Figures have also been reclassified.

Note 13 : OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st Mar 2023

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Other Non Financial Liabilities

6.15

4.30

Total

6.15

4.30

A




Note 14 : EQUITY CAPITAL

A Authorised, Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share Capital and Par Value per Share
Phrtinare As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 315t Mar 2023
Number Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Number Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 4,50,00,000.00 4,500.00 4,50,00,000.00 4,500.00
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,87,71,469.00 387715 3,10.17,175.00 3,101.72
Subscribed & tully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,87,71,459.00 3.877.15 3,10.17,175.00 310172
Total 3,87,71,469.00 3,877.15 3,10,17,175.00 3,101.72

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share tach shareholder is ehigible for one vote per share held
in the event of liguidation, aquity sharsholders are eligible to recelve the remaining assets of the campany after distnbution of all preferential amount, in propartion to

their shareholding
There are no share in the preceeding five years alloted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash/ Bonus shares/ Bought Back

There are no shares reserved for issue under oplians and contracts/ commitments for saie of shares [ disinventsment

8. Reconciliation of ber of Shares O ing a1 the beginning and end of the year
Equity Shares Equity Shares
Particulars As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 315t Mar 2023

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,10,17,175 3,10,17,175
Shares Issued during the year 77.54,294 -
Shares bought back dunng the year - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,87,71,469 3,10,17,175
C. Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Equity Shares
Name of Shareholder (Mr./Mrs.) As at 315t Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023
Mo, of Shares held % of Holding No_of Shares held % of Halding
Mr Rajneesh Bansal [ As a nominee of Paul merchants) 1 )
limited) .
Paul Merchants Ltd (Holding Company) 3,87,71.468 100 3.10.17.174 100
D. Rights, Preferences and Restrictions ing to various classes of Shares
Oass of Shares Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attaching to various classes of Shares

Equity Shares Mo Special Rights, Preterences & Restriciions Attached

Note 15: OTHER EQUITY

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 315t Mar 2023
Particulars
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Impairment Reserve
Opening Balance B4.21 54,50
{+] Current Year Transfer 57.26 9.31

Closing Balance 121.48 54.21
A Statutory Reserve
QOpening Balance 1,65141 127171
[+] Current Year Transfer | — 611.05 N 373.70

Clesing Balance 1,651.41
8. General Reserve
Opening Balance 5,985.73 4,615.82
(+} Current vear Transfer 238694 1,509,428
[} DIVIDEND APPORTIONMENT 23283 135.58
{-) DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION TAX

Clasing Balance 8,140.04 558573
C Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 813511 9.135.11
Add . Securities premium credited on Share (ssue 4,187 32
Less . Premium Utilised . I .

Clasing Balance 13,322.43 §.135.11
D. Retained Earning =
Opening balance
|+] Met Frofit For the current year 3,053 40 1.894 45
{+}/ |-} Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (net of 1.86 aoe
tax)
{1 Prior Period Provision
1} Transfer 10 Impairment Reserve as per RSI $7.36 a3t
requirement
{+) Transfer 1o General Reserve 2,386.94 1,509.48

b,
|-} Transfar 1a Statutary Reserve as per RBI
requirement 611.05 7o
Total 23,546 41 16,836,456

Nature and purpose of reserve )
Statutory reserve : Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly an amount reoresenting 20% of Profit for the period is transterred for the year

Securities Premium  This Reserve represents the premium on Issue of equity shares and can be utilized in accordance witn the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
® with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

General Reserve This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company This Reserve can be utihzed in

Impairment Reserye: This resende 14 cooatad (n sccordance para 2.2 of Master Cireetien Roserve Bank of India | Non- Banking Financisl Company: Scale based Regulation| Directions, 2021 dated Ociober 19 2023



Note 16 : INTEREST INCOME AND GAIN ON ASSIGNMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSET

M/S PAUL MERCHANTS FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

[Rs.Inlakhs)

Far the Year ended 315t Mar 23

For the Year ended 315t Mar 24
Particulars On Financial Assets measured | On Financial Assets Interest Income on On Financial Assets On Financial Assets Interest Income on
at fair value through OCI measured at Amaortised Cost |Financial Assets classified |measured at fair value |measured at Amortised Financial Assets classified

at fair value through through OCI Cost at fair value through profit
|profit or loss or loss B

Interest Income on Loans 16,042 45 N - 10,588 48

Gain gn Assignment of Financial Asset® B4.10 L

Total Revenue From Operations 16,126.55 = = 10,588.48

* During the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2024, the company, Paul Merchants Finance Pvt Ltd, has assigned Loans amounting to Rs. 161.08 Crores under Direct
Assignment (DA) agreement entered with assignee. As per IND AS 108, the company Is required to recognise gain/loss on such assignment upfront at time af execution of
the transaction and resultantly, a gain of Rs. 84,10,202/- (arrived after reducing unrealised gains on pre-matured loans) has been recognised in the accompanying financial
results. This gain has been arrived at after reducing the carrying value of the assigned loans from the sale consideration on assignment. This sale consideration includes the
amount received from the assignee as well as the excess interest spread expected to be earned by the company on the assigned loans till their realisation. Additionally, as
per RBI guidelines an securitisation, company is required to retain minimum 10% of the assigned loans on its books while 90% of the loan amount is transferred to the
assignee. Such condition has also been complied by the company and necessary disclosures mandated by RBI as well as IND AS-109 are given in the financial statements of

the company

Nate 17 . FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

For the Year ended 315t Mar
Particulars For the Year ended 31st Mar 24 23
Amaount [Rs. In lakhs] Amount [Rs. In lakhs]

Incame from Money Transfer Service 14561 393.15
Other Cammission Income-Paulpay 13.89 5222
and traval
Other Commissan Income-insurance 197.00 11.82
Totai 356.50 457.20




Note 18: OTHER INCOME

Particulars

For the Year ended 31st
Mar 24

For the Year ended 31st
Mar 23

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Interest on FDR 23.92 9.62
Miscellaneous Income 88.98 41.94
Loan Servicing Fee 133.02 0.38

Total 245.92 51.94

Note 19: FINANCE COSTS

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended 31st Mar 24

For the Year ended 31st Mar 23

On Financial liabilities
measured at fair value
through profit or loss

On Financial liabilities
measured at Amortised
Cost

On Financial liabilities
measured at fair value
through profit or loss

On Financial liabilities
measured at Amortised
Cost

Interest on borrowings 6,168.66 3,583.52

Interest on NCD 18.81

Bank Charges 145.70 259.83
6,333.16 3,843.35

Note 20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars

For the Year ended 31st
Mar 24

For the Year ended 31st
Mar 23

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Salaries & Allowances 2,974.60 2,079.20
Leave Encashment 38.47 32.05
Staff Welfare Expenses 102.38 65.68
Contribution to ESI & EPF 148.71 102.49
Gratuity 40.57 26.74
Bonus 77.29 67.44

Total 3,382.02 2,373.60




Note 21 : OTHER EXPENSES

For the Year ended 31st Mar | For the Year ended 31st Mar
Particulars 2024 2023
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Commission Exp-Dmt & Indo Nepal 47.85 200.52
Computer Expenses 26.19 34,52
Certification & Intergration Fees 11.00 13.35
Software Expenses 31.65 -
Telephone Expenses 39.28 25.46
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 149.14 124 .35
Insurance 145.82 99.84
Legal, Professional & Consultancy 308.83 287.15
Charges
Pavments To Auditors (Refer Note (I) 1.36 0.77
System Audit Expenses 14.67 8.41
Printing & Stationary 46.93 31.24
Rent, Taxes & Energy Cost 786.96 471.58
Security Expenses 390.89 307.01
Advertisement & Publicity 220.83 171.11
Provision For Impairment Of Loan 45.55 58.99
Asset
Cashfree Chargeback/Dispute Lost 1.22 5.97
Repair & Maintenance 58.70 64.71
Director’S Fees, Allowances And 0.35 030
Expenses
Conference And Meeting Exp 20.56 4.65
Postage And Telegram 11.84 7.99
Donation 4.42 0.89
Freight And Carriage 10.60 9.78
Server Charges 28.06 13.35
Auctioneer Charges 8.01 2.87
Bad Debts Written Off 17:21 1.01
Misc Office Expenses 195.06 109.68

Total 2,622.99 2,055.51
NOTE 21 (i) Payments to auditors

For the Year ended 31st Mar | For the Year ended 31st Mar
Payments to the auditor 2024 2023
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Statutory Audit Fees 0.59 0.59
Tax Audit Fees 0.18 0.18
Fees for other services 0.59

Total 1.36 0.77




Note 22: Corporate Social Responsibility & other Social Welfare Expenses

For the Year ended 31st Mar | For the Year ended 31st Mar
Particulars 2024 2023
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
A) Gross Amount Required to be
spent by the Co. During the Year =1 8337
B) Amount Spent on CSR During the ) .
s Amount Paid Amount Paid
-Setting up of old age home and Day 0.79 10.91
- Animal Welfare 42.55 20.00
- Eradicating hunger 23.88 20.71
- Girls Education 1.65
C) Shortfall in expenditure, ifany -
D) Total of Shortfall of earlier years , if -
E) Reason of Shortfall -
F) Nature of CSR Activities -
G) Details of CSR contributed to
related Parties including Trust 2
controlled by Company
H) Details of movement in provisions
if any , made with respect to a liability
by entering into a contractual B
obligation
Total 68.87 51.62
Note 23 :Exceptional Items
For the Year ended 31st Mar | For the Year ended 31st Mar
Particulars 2024 2023
Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
Loss on Cyber Fraud Case 8.54
RBI Penalties A/c * 30.50
Total 30.50 8.54

* During 2nd Quarter, Penalty of Rs. 30.5 lakhs has been imposed upon Paul Merchants Finance Private
Limited (PMFPL) by the Reserve Bank of India for violation of Para 9.1(ii)(d) of the Master Directions on
PPIs dated Aug 27,2021. The said amount was previously disclosed as a contingent liability in financials
for FY 2022-23 and has been paid in full during the quarter upon receipt of final order. The same is
disclosed as an extraordinary item in the standalone financial results of PMFPL as well as the

consolidated financial results of the group.




Note 24: Related Party Disclosures
(As per Ind AS 24 issued by ICAl)

A.List of Related Parties having control or significant influence

Name of Related Party

Sr. No. | Nature of Relationaship
1 | Holding Company Paul Merchants Limited
2 | Fellow Subsidiary Company Paul Infotech Private Limited
PML Realtors Private Limited
Mr. Sat Paul Bansal - Chairman & Managing
3 | Key Management Personnel Director
Mrs. Sarita Rani Bansal - Whole Time Director
Mr. Shaibu Geevarghese Cherian - Whole
Time Director
Mrs. Aarti Markan - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Gourav Kapoor - Company Secretary (Till
10..01.2024)
Mrs. Shivani Sharma - Company Secretary
(From 11.01.2024 onwards)
4 | Director Mr. Rajneesh Bansal - Director
5 Relative of Directors / Key Management
Personnel Mrs. Aastha Bansal - Relative of Director
Mr. Sandeep Bansal - Relative of Director
Mrs. Nita Bansal - Relative of Director
6 Firm in which Director or relative of Director is
proprietor Tapa Gas Service
Paul Distributors
Channel Management & Marketing
. Partnership fim in which Director or relative of
Director is a partner Bright Cove Goods
Paul Innovations LLP
Niraa Talent
Guru Production
Cable Distribution Services
Bright Furnishing LLP
I-Shop
Shubh Shop
White Hill Distribution
Tea Stall
Pitaara Marketing
8 | Companies in which Director / Relative of

director exercise control/significant influence

Magical Vacation Travel & Tourism LLC, UAE
Paul Fincare Private Limited

9X Media Private Limited

ADB 21 Media Private Limited

Bosna Digital Entertainment Private Limited
BBSM Films Private Limited

Collective Media Ventures Private Limited
Divya Broadcasting Private Limited
Infotechture Solutions Private Limited
{formerly Paul Instacred Private Limited)
Paul E commerce Private Limited

Paul Swift Credit Private Limited

Paul Excursions Private Limited

Paul Merchants Jewels & Metals LLP

Paul Overseas Private Limited

Pitaara Talkies Private Limited

PML Holidays Private Limited




. b

the C

B. Disclosure of
For the Period ended 315t Mar 2024

P

y and related parties

Nature of Transaction

Key Management Personnel
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Director & Relative of
Director/KMP Amount
(Rs. In lakhs)

(Holding Company)
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Related Party
Others
Amount (Rs. In
lakhs)

Rent paid

2116

GST on corporate guarantee given
Rent paid to Whole Time Director

1440

18.15

bursement of Legal Expenses

Rent received

Rent received

_[l_—ﬂ_Semce Charges Received - DMT

3.10

Service Charges Paid - Indo'ﬁiepaf )

4.60

Net Amount of working capital repaid

4,748.00

Interest paid on loan

218676

Commission for cross reference sales of Forex
Services earned

24.30

Commission for cross reference sale

Dwidend Paid

232,63

Right Issue

4,962.75

Purchase of goods & services

271.77

Sale of goods & services

Sale of goods & services

1510

| Sale of goods & services

142

| Sale of goods & services

1213

| Sale of goods & services

0.44

Sale of goods & services

015

Sale of goods & services

194

Sale of goods & services

210

Sale of goods & services

0.20

Additional Borrowing from director

Additional Borrowing from KMP
Additional Borrowing from KMP

Interest Exp on borrowing fram KMP

282.00

_30.00

428

Interest Exp on borrowing from KMP

051

Loan & Advance repaid to Director

Loan & Advance repaid to KMP

354 80

Loan & Advance repaid to KMP

30.00

Additional Borrowing from Fellow Subsidiary

Interest Exp on borrawing from Fellow
Subsidiary

Loan & Advance repaid to Fellow Subsidiary

30.00

Loan & Advance given to Related Party

200.00

200.00

Loan & Advance Repaid by Related Party

Interest income an Loan & Advances given to
Related Party N

20,32

Interest income on Loan & Advances given to
Related Party

Interest income on Loan & Advances given to
KMP

111

40.86

Loan & Advance repaid by Whole Time Director

2.66

Remuneration paid to Whole Time Directar

Remuneration paid to relative of director |

e

Remuneration paid to CMD

300.00

Remuneration paid to Company Secretary & -
Chief Finanoial Otficer

nm

Total

1,111.25

514.02

602.02

C. Disclosure of Outstanding balance of related parties

As at 31st Mar 2024

Nature of Transaction

Key Management Personnel
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Director & Relative of
Director/KMP Amount
(Rs. In lakhs)

{Holding Company)
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Related Party
Others
Amount [Rs. In
lakhs)

GST on corporate guarantee payable

Working Capital facilty
 Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables

0.86

Trade Receivables

125

Loan & Advances payable to Fellow Subsidiary

Loan & Advances payable to Directar

Loan & Advances payable to KMP

Loan & Advances receivable from Related Party

Loan & Advances receivable from Whole Time
| Director

Total




For the Period ended 31st Mar 2023

Mature of Transaction

Key Management Personnel

Amount (Rs.)

(Holding Company)
Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Director & Relative of
Director/KMP Amount

(Rs. In lakhs)

Related Party
Others
Amount (Rs. In
lakhs)

Rent paid to Holding Company
Rent paid to Whale Time Director

11.74

10.81

0.39

Rent received from related party

Net Service Charges Received from Holding

33

Comp

Service Charges Paid to related Party

4.97

Net additional working capital

5,257.00

Interest paid on working capital taken from Hoid

1,871.80

29.99

Ci ission Received from Hodling Company fos

| Dividend Paid to Holding Company

139.58

Purchase of goods & services from Holding
Lompany

Additional Borrowing from director

— I
Sale of goods & services torelated party |

6500

207 60

Additional Borrowing from Chaiman &
Managing director

30650

Additional Barrowing from Whale Time Director

2200

Interest Exp on borrowing from director

629

Interest Exp on borrowing from Chairman &
Managing Director

547

Interest Exp an borrowing from Whole-time
Director

Loan & Advance repaici to Director

025
194.00

Loan & Advance repaid to Chairman &
1ManaEing Director

256.70

| Advance repaid to Whole Time Director

22.00

Additional Borrowing from relative of director

30.00

Additional Borrowing from Fellow Subsidiary

409.00

Interest Exp on borrowing from related party

Interest Exp on borrowing from relative of
director

Interest Exp un_barrnwinp, from Fellow
Cuhcidi
¥

Loan & Advance repaid to related party

Loan & Advance repaid to relative of Director

Loan & Advance repaid to Fellow Subsidiary

Loan & Advance given to related party

Interest income on Loan & Advances given to
related party

Interest income on Loan & Advances givento
Whole Time Director
Advance paid to Whole Time Directar

0.90

13.16

Remuneration paid to relative of director

Remuneration paid to Whole Time Director

54 52

Remuneration paid to CMD

240.00

Remuneration paid to Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer

2795

Total

1,225.55

7.526.00

2,208.05

C0 829.83

ECTCR 22




Note 25: Disclosure required as per Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023,vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023.
In accordance with the regulatory guidance on implementation of Ind AS issued by RBI on October 19, 2023, the company has computed provision as
per Income recognition Asset Classification and provisiong norms({IRACP) issued by RBI solely for comparative purpose as specified therein, A

comparision between provision required under IRACP and impairment allowance made under IND AS 109 is given below:-

(Rs. In lakhs)

Asset Asset classification as | Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provisions Difference
Classification as  |per Ind AS 109 Amount as per Ind AS |(Provisions) as Amount required as per between Ind AS 109
per RBI Norms required under Ind AS IRACP norms provisions and
e 109 IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 5=(3)-(4) 6 7=(4)-(6)
Performing Asset
Standard Stage-1 92,523.18 131.34 92,391.85 23131 (99.97)
Stage-2 2,359.21 16.49 2,342.71 5.90 10.52
Sub total 94,882.39 147.83 94,734.56 237.21 (89.38)
Non-Performing
Asset (NPA)
Sub Standard Stage-3 646.78 38.92 607.86 64.68 (25.76)
Doubtful -upto 1
year Stage 3 1.43 0.10 1.33 0.29 (0.19)
Doubtful-1to 3
years Stage-3 1377 0.96 12.81 4.13 (3.17)
Doubtful - More
than 3 years Stage-3 6.94 0.49 6.45 3.47 (2.98)
Unsecured Stage -3 50.00 50.00 50.00
Subtotal for
Doubtful 72.15 51.55 20.60 57.89 (6.34)
Loss Stage-3 N
Subtotal for NPA 718.93 90.47 628.46 122.57 (32.10)
Other items such Stage-1
as guarantees, Stage-2 N
loan Stage-3
Subtotal
Stage-1 92,523.18 131.34 52,391.85 231.31 (99.97)
Total Stage-2 235921 16.49 234271 5.90 10.59
Stage-3 718.93 90.47 628.46 122,57 (32.10)
Total 95,601.31 238.30 95,363.02 359.78 (121.48)

(1) The shortfall of Rs. 121.48 lakhs Between the provisions as per REI IRAC Norms and Loss allowances as per IND AS 109 has been maintained as
impairment Reserve in accordance with RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24 October 19, 2023

(2) The company has followed the assumption contained in IND-AS 109 about considering Stage-1 advances as thase which are upto 30 days past due. The
same 15 as per board approved policy as well as placed before Audit Committe Board
(3) The company have early adopted the Glide Path for NPA classification norms as mentioned in RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106
DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 October 19, 2023 and amended time to time and has classified its debts outstanding exceeding 90 days as NPA




Note 26. Earnings per Share

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Net Profit for the Year (Rs.in Lakhs ) 3,053.40 1,894.45
Number of Equity Shares (Nos. ) 3,87,71,469 3,10,17,175
Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs per Share ) 7.88 6.11
Note 27: OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Particulars

Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Remeasurement (Gain)Loss on defined benefit obligations
2.49 5.39

Income tax relating to above -0.63 1.36

Remeasurement Loss on defined benefit obligations (net of
Tax)

Note 28: Loan to Assets Ratio

Disclosure as per paragraph 37.1.1 (ii) of Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October
19, 2023, the Company is maintaining Loan to Assets Ratio of 95.55% for loans granted against collateral security of Gold lewellery.

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Amount (Rs. In lakhs)

Advances against security of Gold Jewellery

95,338.69

$9,799.58

Total Assets of the Company

99,775.44

74,620.52

Note 29: Minimum Revenue from Operations

The company has complied with RBI guidelines with regard to minimum stipulated revenue from operations of 50% since its start of business

operations from December 2012.

Note 30: Disclosures as per paragraph 37.4.4 of RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24

dated October 19, 2023

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars e

Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
Number of Gold loan Accounts Auctioned 3,928 2,461
Outstanding dues on these loan accounts 2,299.64 1,464.81
Realised Amount from auction 2,372.83 1,497.39

The Company confirms that none of the group companies have participated in the above auctions. The details have been compiled by the

management and relied by auditors.




Note 31 : Disclosure as per para 31 of RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated

October 19, 2023
(Rs. In lakhs)

; For the Period ended 31st Mar 2024 For the Period ended 31st Mar 2023
Particulars Bl : Eendasadiiay ] i )
Amount 0/S Amount 0/S |
SNO. Liabilities Side As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023
(1) Loans & advances availed by NBFC inclusive of
interest accured thereon but not paid
(a) Debenture -Secured 722.41 =
- Unsecured NIL NIL
{other Falling within the meaning of public deposit)
NIL NIL
(b) Deferred Credits NIL NIL
(c) Term Loans from Bank/Fi 28,118.28 14,808.61
. (d) Inter Corporate Loans & Borrowings NIL NIL
{e) Commercial Paper NIL NIL
(f) Public Deposits B NIL NIL
____[fe) Other Loans I S N NI
(i) Other Borrowing From Bank/FI - 18002600 _ 13,$dﬁ.t}35
(ii) Loan From Related Party 18,715.82| 24,487.12
Break Up of 1(f) above (outstanding public deposit
(2) |inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid)
(a) In the form of unsecured debentures NIL NIL
(b) In the form of Partly secured debentures i.e.
debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of
security NIL _I'!!l_.ﬂ
(c ) other Public Deposits NIL NIL
Assets Side As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023
Breakup of loan & Advances including Bill
(3) |Receivables (other than those included in (4)
below):
e - L. e —t —
[a} Secured 95,538.]3 70,707.21
(b) Unsecured 62.53 S - 3287
Breakup of leased Asset & Stock on hire & other
(4) |assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i) Lease Assets Including lease rentals under sundry o
debtors:
(a) Financial Lease NIL NIL
(b) Operating Lease NIL NIL
(i1) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors =
(a) Asset on Hire NIL NIL
{b) Repossessed Assets — N NIL NIL
(iii) Other Loans counting towards asset financing
activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed Nit - N";
(b) Loans other than (a)above | NiL B N
(5) | Breakup of ip_\_.vestments o ) _ B i i - o ]
Current Investments e e |
1. Quoted N
(i) Shares -
(a) Equity NIL NIL
(b) Preference NIL y NIL
NS~
{ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL 1.9\ \ NIL
(i) Units of Mutual Funds NIL Fir"_ NIL
. vay L ,a—"’v
(iv) Goverement Securities NIL \a A NIL
(v] Others (please specify) NIL X o NILJ




2. Unguoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity B - NIL NIL
(b) Preference NIL NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL NIL
(iv) Goverement Securities NIL NIL
(v} Others (please specify) NIL NIL
Long Term Investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity NIL NIL
(b) Preference NIL NIL
(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL NIL
(iv)] Goverement Securities NIL NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL
2. Unguoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity NIL NIL
(b) Preference NIL NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL NIL
(iv) Goverement Securities NIL NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL NIL
(6) Borrower group- wise classification of assets
financed as in (3) & (4) above:
Category As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023
1. Related Parties Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
(a) Subsidiaries = :
(b) Company in the same group -
( c ) Other Related Parties 176.61
2.0ther than related parties
(a) Secured 95,362.18 70,707.21
{b) Unsecured 62.53 32.82
TOTAL 95,601.31 70,740.03
Investor group- wise classification of all
(7) |investments (Current & Long Term ) in shares and
securities (both quoted & unquoted)
Category Market Value/ Br;:l:’up o fuirvalos or Books Value (net pof provision)
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries -
(b) Company in the same group -
[ c ) Other Related Parties -
2.0ther than related parties - i
TOTAL -
(8) |- Other Information
Particulars Amount (Rs. In lakhs) Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
(i) Gross Non Perfarming Assets - _n
(a) Related Parties ) NIL NILﬁ
(b) Other than Related Parties 718.92 579.80
(ii) Net Non Performing Assets 5 ~
(a) Related Parties 1114 p— ' NIL
(b) Other than Related Parties 628.46 | - 545 Ny 498.57
(i) Asset acquire in staisfaction of Debt' a /')__x @l




Note 32. Segment reporting

As per IND AS-108 on Segment Reporting, segment information is provided below:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Sno Particular For the year ending 31st Mar 2024 For the year ending 31st Mar 2023
1 |Segment Revenue
(a) |GOLD LOAN 16,430.78 10,555.80
(b)) |DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER 69.56 392.98
(c) |PERSONAL LOAN 1.43 32.68
(d] |PREPAID INSTRUMENTS 23.57 50.63
(e ) |DISTRIBUTION 197.54 11.82
(f) |OTHER 6.10 53.71
Income from Operation 16,728.97 11,097.62
2 |Segment Expenditure
{a) |GOLD LOAN 12,266.27 7,944,481
(b) |DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER 104.98 406.89
{c) |PERSONAL LOAN 38.69 19.97
(d) |PREPAID INSTRUMENTS 156.32 126.99
(e) |DISTRIBUTION 201.96 55.24
(f) |OTHER 175 0.48
Expenses from Operation 12,769.96 8,553.98|
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (a)- (b)) 3,959.01 2,543.64
3 |Segment Assets
(a) |GOLD LOAN 99,006.92 73,023.88
(b) |DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER 218.53 395.28
(c) |PERSONAL LOAN 0.14 38.54
(d) |PREPAID INSTRUMENTS 473.64 494.90
(e) |DISTRIBUTION 98.49 35.59
(f) |OTHER 22.55 5.02
Total Assets 99,820.26] 73,993.23
4 |Segment Liabilities
{a) |GOLD LOAN 71,925.40 53,827.46
(b)) |DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER 16.75 145.29
(c) |PERSONAL LOAN - 0.16
(d] |PREPAID INSTRUMENTS 112.44 77.53
[e) [DISTRIBUTION 41.26 4.28
(f) |OTHER 0.84 0.33
Total Liabilities 72,096.70 54,055.05
5 |Capital Employed
(@) |GOLD LOAN 27,081.52 19,196.42
(b) |DOMESTIC MONEY TRANSFER 201.78 249,99
(c] |PERSOMNAL LOAN 0.14 38.39
[d) |PREPAID INSTRUMENTS 361.20 417.38
[e) |DISTRIBUTION 57.22 31.31
(t) |OTHER 21.70 4.69
UNALLOCATED ASSETS = -
UNALLOCATED LIABILITIES
Total Capital Employed 27,723.56 19,938.18

‘ 2



Note 33: Disclosure under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st Mar 2023

Particulars Amount (Rs. In lakhs) | Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
The principal amount and the interest due thereon {to be shown separately) Principal - 44,08 Principal - 36.10
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year Interest Due - Nil Interest Due - Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each NIL

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section
23

NIL

{accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without NIL NIL
adding the interest specified under this act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting

year NIL NIL
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small NiL NIL

NOTE 34: DISCLOSURE AS PER AMENDED SCHEDULE 11l TO THE COMPANIES ACT,2013

(a) There are no differences in the guarterly returns or statemants (such as stock statements) filed by company. All such
statements are in agreement with the Books of Accounts.

(b) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Property (Prohibition) Act , 1988 (45 of 1988)and the rules made thereunder.

{c) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(d) The company does not have any transaction with the Strike Off Companies in the Financial Year.

() No registration or satisfaction of charges are pending to be filed with ROC.

(f) There are no transactions recorded in the books of accounts, which are disclosed during the Income tax assessment /search/survey.

(g) The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

(h) There is no scheme of Amalgamation/Merger is approved by Court/NCLT, as no such case for Amalgamation/Merger related to
company is pending before any Court/NCLT.

tiy Ne immovable property is owned by the company.

(J) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2{87) of the companies Act 2013.




Note 35: Financial Ratios Mar'24 Mar'23
a) Capiial to risk-weighted ratio(CRAR) 28% 32%
Amount (Rs | Amount (Rs
in Lakhs) in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st Mar 2024

As at 31st Mar 2023

Tier 1 Capital 27,408.75 19,695.1%
Tier 2 Capital 131.34 -
Total Regulatory Capital 27,541.08 19,695.19
Aggregate Risk Weighted Assets 97,523.76 61,097.83
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 28% 32%
Tier Z Capital Ratio 0% 0%
Capital to risk-weighted asset Ratio 8% 32%

b) Liquidity Coverage ratio

It is not mandated to be complied with by non-deposit taking NBFCs having asset size below %5,000 crore.

to the company for FY 2023-24.

Therefore, same is not applicable



Note 36 : Disclosure as per para 27.2 of RBI Master Directions vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated

October 19, 2023

Section |
A) Exposure

1) Exposure to real estate sector
(Amount in # Lakhs)

Category Current Previous

year Year

i) Direct exposure

a) Residential Mortgages —

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or NIL NIL

that is rented. Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

b) Commercial Real Estate —

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial

premises, multifamily residential buildings, mult tenanted commereial premises, indusinal or  warchouse 198 49 107.63

space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, ete.). Exposure would also include non-fund

hased (NFB) limits

¢) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS and other securitized exposures -

1 Residental -

i. Commercial Real Estate NL k

i) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and Housing Finance NIL NIL

Companies.

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 198,49 107.63




2) Exposure to capital market
(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars

Current
Year

Previous
Year

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is
not exclusively invested in corporate debt

i) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual
funds

i)  Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extentsecured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than
shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented
mutual funds does not fully cover the advances

v)  Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues

viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary
issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds

ix)  Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

x)  All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(ij  Category |

(i) Category Il

(i) Category Il

Total exposure to capital market

NIL

NIL

NBFCs may omit those line items which are not applicable/ not permitted or have nil exposure both in current and previous year. Further,

exposures against pledge of shares by promoters of a company shall be shown separately
under the respective line items.




3) Sectoral exposure

Current Year Previous Year
Total Exposure Gross NPAs Percentage of |Total Exposure Gross NPAs |Percentage of
(includes on balance (¥ lakhs) Gross NPAs to |(includes on (¥ lakhs) Gross NPAs to
sheet and off- total exposure |balance sheet and total exposure
Sectors balance sheet in that sector |off-balance sheet in that sector
exposure) exposure)
(% lakhs) (¥ lakhs)
1, Agriculture and
Allied Activities NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Industry
i
ii....
Others
Total of Industry
i+ii+...+0thers) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. Services
e 176.61 0.00 NIL 800.00 0.00 NIL
ii...
Others
Total of Services
(i+ii+...+Others) 176.61 0.00 NIL 800.00 0.00 NIL
4. Personal Loans
i.. 0.00 0.00 NIL 32.82 21.79 66.67%
il...
Others
Total of Personal Loans
(i+ii+...+0thers)
0.00 0.00 NIL 32.82 21.79 66.67%
5. Others
(a) Gold Loans 95362.18 668.92 0.70% 69507.21 558.01 0.80%
(b) Other Loans 62.53 50.00 79.96% - -
Total of Others 95424.71 718.92 0.75% 69907.21 558.01 0.80%

Note:

i. The disclosures as above shall be based on the sector-wise and industry-wise bank credit (SIBC) return submitted by scheduled commercial banks to the
Reserve Bank and published by Reserve Bank as ‘Sectoral Deployment of Bank Credit’,

ii. In the disclosures as above, if within a sector, expasure to a specific sub-sector/industry is more than 10 per cent of Tier | Capital of a NBFC, the same
shall be disclosed separately within that sector. Further, within a sector, if exposure to specific sub-sector/industry is less than 10 per cent of Tier | Capital
such exposures shall be clubbed and disclosed as “Others” within that sector.

iii. The company has not classified gold loans granted to barrowers such as small and marginal farmers or those involved in other allied activites in S.No.1




4) Intra-group exposures

NBFCs shall make the following disclosures for the current year with comparatives for the previous year:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

TTotal amount of
intra-group
exposures (¥ lakhs)

ii) Total amount of
top 20 intra-group
exposures (¥ lakhs)

ili) Percentage of intra-
group exposures to
total exposure of the
NBFC on
borrowers/customers (¥
lakhs)

i) Total amount of

intra-group

exposures (¥ lakhs)

ii) Total amount of
top 20 intra-group
exposures (¥ lakhs)

iii) Percentage of
intra-group exposures
to total exposure of
the NBFC on
borrowers/customers (¥
lakhs)

Loans & Advances Given

{Outstanding as on 31st March)

Loans & Advances

Taken{Outstanding as on 31st

March)

176.61

19715.82

176.61

19715.82

0.18%

29.00%

800.00

24487.12

5) Unhedged foreign currency exposure NBFCs shall disclose details of its unhedged foreign currency exposures, Further, it shall also
disclose their policies to manage currency induced risk.

NIL

800.00

24487.12

1.13%

46.00%




B) Related Party Discl
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Parent (as per ownership or Subsidiaries Associates [ Joint i Key N—— Relatives Of Key . — 5 Yol
Related Party / ltems control) Ventures - | e 8 F
Current Year Previous Year Crrent | Fravious . Gurvent. | Previows Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year |Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Year Year Year Year
Borrowings#
Ouistonding 18,990.62 23,738.62 - - 47.00 114.80 - - 53.50 - 619.70 633.70 19,720.82 24,487.12
Maximum Balance 29,563.62 26,433.62 - - - 134.80 177.00 16000 653.97 947.70 30,512.39 27,558.32
Outstanding - - - = = = =
R Balaner - - - = - - I ] 5 N 2 = F
Placement of Deposits# - - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding - - - - - - - - - -
Maximum Balance = - - - - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding - - - - - - 10.49 13.16 - 175,00 800.00 185.49 £13.16
M Balance . - - 13.16 15.00 - - - - 800.00 B800.00 813.16 £15.00
Out ding - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Mauxii Balance - - - - - - - - - - -
Purchase of fixed/Other assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sale of fixed/Other assets - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Interest paid 2,186.76 1,871.80 2 - 4.80 572 6.01 547 .29 57.45 58.57 2,254.47 1,948.40
Interest received - - - - - - 1.11 0.90 - - 2 . 61,18 15.62 62.29 16.51
Right Issue 4,962.75 . - - - 3 = 8 . - - - 4,962,715 -
Dividend 232.63 139,58 - - - - - . - 0.00 0.00 - 232.63 139.58
R i - - - - 394.20 - - - - - - - 394.20 -
Others** 359.48 257.62 - E - 11.68 233.28 12.00 4.53 E 5 a1.44 7.43 424.59 602.86

® pisclosures for directors and relatives of directors should be made separately in separate columns from other KMPs and refatives of other KMPs.

" The outstanding at the year end and the maximum during the year are to be disclosed
* Specify item If total far the item Is more than 5 per cent of total related party transactions, Related parties would include trusts and other bodies in which the NBFC can directly or indirectly (through its related parties) exert control or significant influence.




36C) Disclosure of complaints

1 ¥ on recelved by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman
5. No Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
: 8 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year S
2 Numbar of complaints received during the year 43 15
3 Numbar of complaints disposed during the year 0 15
3.1 |Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC ] N
a4 Number of complaints pending al the end of the year N
daints ived by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5. HNumber of maintainable complaints received by the NEBFC from Office of 7 2
Crmbredsman
5.1.|Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of
6 2
Ombudsman
§ OF 5, number of complaints resolved through 1
2 fmediat fssued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 |OF 5, number of complaints resclved after passing of Awards by Office of
|Ombudsman against the NBFC B
(5 Kumber of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time [other than
those appealed) = =
Maota: A rafar laints on the grounds ificall igned in d Ombud: Scheme, 2021
(Previcusly The Ombudsman Scherme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.
* it shail only be to NBFCS which are included under The Reserve Bank - o Scheme, 2021
2| Top five grounds ' of complaunts received by the NBFCs from customers
Grounds of complaints, [Le. complaints relating to)
Number of complaints Number of *h the X “_;'I" Number of complaints | ©f 5, number of
pending at the complaints received 1o raaboad pending at the end ol | complaints pending
30 da
beginning of the year during the year SRy ek ST the year beyond e
1 1 3 4 5 6
Current Year
Lewy of charges without prior notice/ excessive charges/ foreclosure charges o 7 a0 a (4]
Staff Behavior 0 4 -33% o ]
iffi n of o 4 SO0 o o
CIBIL Report mismatch L] 7 700%
| Empioyee Complaint for Full & Final 0 1 100%
Others
Total o a3 o 0
Previous Year
Lewy of charges without prior notice/ excessive charges/ foreciosure charges Q 5 ET% o 1
Staff Behaviol [} 6 £00% o 0
Difficulty in operation of accounts [} 4 A00% a o
Others
Total 1] 15 L] 1
* Thve list of grounds of complaints given below ore indicotive only,
1. Credit Cards 1 Difficulty in operation of accounts 3. Mis-seliing 4 Loans & Advances
5. Recovery Agents/ Direct Sales Agents 6. Lewy of charges without prior notice/ 7. Nan-ob of |8 5taff
excessive charges/ foreclowure charges fair practices code
9 Facilitees for custamers visiting the office/ adherence to prescribed working hours, |10 Others




Note 37 : Reconciliation of the Total Tax Charge:

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at
India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the ccounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for

the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is, as follows:

{Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Accounting profit before tax 3,959.01 2,552.19
Applicable tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed tax expense 996.40 642.34
Tax effect of: =
Exempted income - -
Non deductible items 41.65 53.95
Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating to prior years (23.08) (1.32)
Deferred Tax (58.00) 11.03
Others (51,38) (56.79)
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss 505.61 649.20
Effective tax rate 22.87% 25.44%

Naote 38: Details of Loan, not in default, transferred through Assignment

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31, 2023
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred (Rs.
in Lakhs) 14,496.90 -
Weighted average residual maturity (in months) 5.46 -
Weighted average holding period (in months) 5.55
Average retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) (%) 10.00% -
Average coverage of tangible security (%) 147.29%
Rating wise distribution of loans transferred Unrated -

* This note refers to Para-86 of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021. During the
Financial Year ended on 31st March 2024, the company have done three Direct Assignment transactions to transfer its loan assets. The
company have complied with the accounting treatment as given under Ind AS 109 and also to RBI guidelines regarding Minimum
Retention Ratio (MRR) and Minimum Holding Period (MHP) and other extant regulations governing the same.




Note 39 : Disclosure in respect of Change in NPA Classification

The RBI vide its Master Directions — “Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023" dated October 19, 2023 and amended time to time, have changed the NPA classification norms and made
standard for all layers of NBFC's. According to Glide Path shared by RBI (as mentioned below), by March 31,2026 all the NBFC's
have to classify their Loan Assets as NPA if they remain overdue for more than S0 days.

NPA Norms Timeline

>150 days overdue By March 31, 2024
>120 days overdue By March 31, 2025
>90 days overdue By March 31, 2026

As per the above mentioned Glide Path, The Company was required to classify NPA's on the basis of 150 days overdue during
current financial year 2023-24 but the company have early adopted the new provision for NPA classification to 90 days overdue
from existing 180 days overdue due to better classification, provisioning and early detection and reporting of NPA's and for the
comfort of bankers and other stakeholders.

Due to this early adoption of transition path as mentioned above there is an increase in NPA provision by Rs. 59.63 Lakhs
showing under the head "Provisions" by debiting the corresponding amount in Profit and Loss Account. The calculation for the
same is given below in the table:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Amount
NPA Provision considering exceeding 90 Days Overdue {A) 238.30
NPA Provision considering exceeding 150 Days Overdue (B) 178.67
Net increase in NPA Provision by charging to P&L Account (A-B) = (i) 59.63
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Interest, considering NPA exceeding 30 Days Overdue (A) 154.74
Interest, considering NPA exceeding 150 Days Overdue (B) 129.17
Net increase/(Decrease) in Interest income (A-B) = (ii) 25.57
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Net Impact on Profit/(loss) due to change in NPA Classification (i) + (ii) (85.20)




Note 40, Other Notes

1. Balance under Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Loans & Advances and Other Receivable and Payables are subject to
confirmation and reconciliation.

2. Additional information pursuant to Schedule 11l division Il part1& 1l aof the Companies Act. 2013 other than stated above
is either NIL or not applicabe.

3, Accounting Policies and Notes 1 to 40 form integral part of Accounts for the year ending 31-03-2024
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (indAS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values and defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial valuation as
required by relevant Ind ASs, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('theAct') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued there after.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Due to the amendments in Schedule 11l applicable to NBFC's, the relevant
changes has been made,

The figures appearing in the financial statements has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs due to requirement of schedule Il

Basis of measurement

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting,
except for certain financial assets which have been measured at fair value and defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial valuation as
required by relevant Ind ASs.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the
date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

Plant and Equipment

The items of Plant & equipment are measured at Cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes and includes amounts added on revaluation (if any), less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including financing costs, attributable to the fixed assets are capitalized.

The Company has opted to measure all its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the Previous GAAP (IGAAP) carrying amount as its
deemed cost as on the date of transition to IND AS 16.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on written down value method (WDV) in the manner prescribed in Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013 over their remaining useful life on pro-rata basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value in accordance with IND AS 7. For the purpaose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Revenue Recognition
Recognition of Interest Income:

The Company recognises Interest income by applying the effective interest rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and other credit-impaired financial assets. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. For other
credit-impaired financial assets, the Company applies effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.
The effective interest rate on a financial asset is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While estimating future cash receipts, factors like expected behaviour and life cycle of the
financial asset, probable fluctuation in collateral value etc. are considered which has an impact on the EIR. While calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company includes all fees and points paid or received to and from the borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts. Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised
using the contractual interest rate as net gain on fair value changes.




Recognition of revenue from sale of goods or services:
Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that reflects the considerations, to which an

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or
service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance cbligation, the
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
Revenue from contract with customer for rendering services is recognised at a point in time when performance obligation is satisfied.

Recognition of Dividend Income:

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established. This is established
when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Employee Benefits

The entity makes contributions to statutory provident funds in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and
Employee State Insurance Act, 1948. Provident Fund and ESI are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the profit and loss
account of the year when the contributions to the respective fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

Gratuity Liability as on 31st March 2024 has been provided for on basis of acturial valuation basis Projected unit credit method in accordane with IND AS-
19,

Leave encashment which are short term compensated absences are charged to profit and loss account of the year in which it is due.

Borrowing Costs

As per IND AS 23 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets (if any) are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to Profit and Loss account.




Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Current Tax: Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in India where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss i.e., either in other comprehensive income or in
equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities used in the
computation of taxable profit and their carrying amounts in the financial statements for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

I, Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Il. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

|. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

1. In respect of deductible temporary differences assaciated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss ie., either in other comprehensive income or in equity.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent
Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes except for contingnet provision against standard assets
as prescribed by RBI guidelines. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Classification of Current / Non Current Assets

All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to
The Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization, the
Company has assumed its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current / Non current classification of assets and liabilitie

Leases

The Company has complied with IND AS 116 “Leases" applicable from 1 April 2019, and considered all material lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019.
The Company has accounted for its short term leases and low value assets In accordance with para 6 of the IND AS. We have considered as short term
lease considering the fact thet Lease can be terminated on short term notice from either side




Financial Assets:

Initial recognition and measurement: All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value when the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financial asset. In case of financial assets which are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition,

Subsequent measurement: The Company classifies its financial assets into various measurement categories. The classification depends on the
contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company's business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective Is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): A financial asset is measured at FVOC! if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fiows and selling financial assets and contractual terms of financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): A financial asset which Is not classified in any of the above categories are
measured at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ model (ECL), for evaluating impairment of
financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit or loss.

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Policy: Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a loss allowance for a financial asset:

« At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

« At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset.
12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on financial assets that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company perfarms an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used
instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into three stages as described below:

For non-impaired financial assets: » Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. When loans are first recognised, the company recognises an allowance based on 12-menth ECL. Stage 1 loans includes
those loans where there is no significant increase in credit risk observed and also includes facilities where the credit risk has been improved and the loan
has been reclassified from stage 2. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition.

» Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Company recognises lifatime ECL for stage 2 financial assets. In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to recognizing 12 months ECL provision.

The company considers a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition in all cases when the loan becomes more than 30 days past due but
up to 90 days past due after the due date on its contractual payments and the company recognises a life time ECL provision on such Stage 2 assets.

It is relevant to mention that in financial years preceding financial year 2023-24, the compamy had estimated Stage 2 assets as those which had been
overdue more that 60 days but less than 180 days. However in light of the voluntary adoption of RBI's 90 days NPA policy as mentioned in note no. 39
the company had revised the accounting estimates relating to stage 2 assets. Necessary impact on such change in estimate is disclosed in note no. 39.

For impaired financial assets: Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of ane or more loss
events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The
Company recognises lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets.

The company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (Credit Impaired) for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations in all
cases when the loan becomes 90 days past due after the due date on its contractual payments.

It is relevant to mention that in financial years preceding financial year 2023-24, the compamy had estimated Stage 3 assets as those which had been
overdue more that 180 days . However in light of the voluntary adoption of RBI's 90 days NPA policy as mentioned in note no. 39 the company had
revised the accounting estimates relating to stage 3 assets. Necessary impact on such change in estimate is disclosed in note no. 39,




Estimation of Expected Credit Loss: The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering expectad changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Probability of Default (PD)

Probability of Default (PD] - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. The Company uses historical
infarmation where avallable to determine PD. Considering the different products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into
various pools. For certain pools where historical Information is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh slippage of past years. For those pools
where historical information is not available, the PD/ default rates as stated by external reporting agencles is considered.

| Portfolio As at 31 March 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gold Loans 2% 10% 100%
Other Loans-Secured 4% 10% 100%
Other Loans-Unsecured 4% 10% 100%

Loss Given Default (LGD)
LGD is the estimated loss that the Company might bear if the borrower defaults. The Company determines its recovery by analysing the recovery trends,
collateral value and expected proceeds from sale of asset.

As at 31 March 2024

Portfolio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gold Loan 7% 7% 7%
Other Loans-5ecured 20% 20% 20%
Other Loans-Unsecured 100% 100% 100%

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Forward looking information = While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP,
unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based
on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may nat be always reflective of such relationships, temporary
overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes primarily in the form of gold
pledged as security against the gold loans given. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. The fair value of the same is based
on data published by various external agencies and related market index.

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets ar sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs
after adjusting for their collateral recovery. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.




